
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

January 8, 2025 
2:00 p.m. 

Hospital Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

 

 

Mission: Compassionate Care For Every Life We Touch 

Vision: To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

I. Call to Order  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision Craig Rood 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

A. December 4, 2024 Regular Meeting 

B. December 23, 2024 Special Meeting 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Medical Staff Bylaws (For Action)              Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Director 

B. Health Equity Plan (For Action) Stephanie Mlinar, Director of Quality 

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Health Plan (For Review) Ann Marie Clevenger, Chief Nursing Officer 

VII. Senior Leader Reports 

A. Chief Clinical Officer Kari Quickenden 

B. Chief Experience Officer Cindy Nelson 

C. Chief Financial Officer Tami Love 

D. Chief Nursing Officer Ann Marie Clevenger 

VIII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

IX. President of the Medical Staff Report Dr. Alicia Gray, Medical Staff Services President 

X.    Committee Reports 

A. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee  Barbara Sowada 

B. Joint Conference Committee                                        Barbara Sowada 

C. Building & Grounds Committee               Craig Rood 

D. Compliance Committee        Kandi Pendleton 

E. Governance Committee Marty Kelsey 

F. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

G. Human Resources Committee                 Kandi Pendleton 

H. Finance & Audit Committee         Marty Kelsey 

1. Capital Expenditure Requests 

2. Information Services Report Terry Thompson, Director of Information Services 

1/130



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

January 8, 2025 
2:00 p.m. 

Hospital Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 

 
    

AGENDA 
 
 

 

 

Mission: Compassionate Care For Every Life We Touch 

Vision: To be our community’s trusted healthcare leader. 

3. Bad Debt (For Action) 

4. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

I. Foundation Board Craig Rood 

XI. Contracts Suzan Campbell, In-House Counsel 

A. Consent Agenda (For Information, No Action Needed) 

1. GoRural 

XII. Good of the Order            Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix))       Barbara Sowada 

XIV. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XV. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/130



3/130



 

 

Minutes of the December 4, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 1 of 6 

 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

December 4, 2024 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session via Zoom on 

December 4, 2024, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order.  

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Judge Nena James, Mr. Marty Kelsey, and Dr. Barbara Sowada. Excused: Ms. Kandi Pendleton 

and Mr. Craig Rood. 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal; and Mr. Taylor Jones, Sweetwater Board of 

County Commissioners. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mission and Vision 

Judge James read aloud the mission and vision statements. 

Mission Moment 

Ms. Richardson said we received positive feedback from new contract staff participating in new 

employee orientation. They said they had never worked anywhere that made them feel so welcomed and 

valued. Ms. Richardson thanked everyone for the work they do during orientation to reinforce our 

culture.   

AGENDA 

The motion to approve the agenda with the change to review the changes to the Medical Staff Bylaws 

rather than approve under Old Business as requested by Mr. Kelsey was made by Judge James; second 

by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The motion to approve the minutes of the November 6, 2024, regular meeting with a typographical 

correction as noted by Dr. Sowada was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Commissioner Jones said he received an e-mail from Commissioner Island Richards regarding an impact 

funding award made to the Hospital as part of a recent industrial siting hearing. He said everyone 

involved did a great job. Dr. Sowada thanked Commissioner Jones for everything they are doing for our 

community and for the Hospital.  

4/130



 

 

Minutes of the December 4, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 of 6 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

Medical Staff Bylaws 

Mr. Kelsey said he would like additional time to review the information. Mr. Phillips said he will review. 

Dr. Sowada said the Board is looking at a few designated sections. Judge James said we need to look at 

how it all melds together. She said she appreciates the highlighted changes and thinks we need to review 

all in context. Judge James gave an overview of the Joint Conference Committee process. She said the 

bylaws review was a learning journey and quite a task. She said the information was well-done and 

presented. Judge James said the delineation between NPPs and APPs was very important. She said it is 

important to adhere to the value of respecting individuals. The bylaws are a living document and have 

to be reviewed and modified accordingly. Dr. Sowada said one other item of concern was term limits for 

officers. She said the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) chose not to put term limits in. Dr. Sowada 

said limits are the recommendation of medical staff governance and board governance experts. Ms. Kerry 

Downs, Medical Staff Services Director, said the MEC was fine putting limits in but the General Medical 

Staff voted on it and made the decision to not include the term limits. Dr. Crofts said she agrees this is a 

living document. She said there is already some discussion of additional changes. She said the group had 

a long discussion of term limits and looked to compare with other Wyoming hospitals. She said we are 

a group you have to make very specific requirements to be a part of and positions have to be voted in 

every year. Dr. Crofts said most physicians don’t go into medicine to do the political part of it. She said 

there are methods to remove someone not doing a good job. There was 50% approval on term limits but 

the requirement is a two-thirds vote. Dr. Crofts said when we first revamped the bylaws in 2018, no one 

felt strongly one way or the other. We must make sure our model for mentorship is really mentoring. All 

agree that training is not the same. Dr. Crofts said we want to make sure people are supported to do a 

great job for our patients. Dr. Sowada asked Dr. Crofts to elaborate more on the mentorship training and 

she reviewed. She said APPs have the training but not the residency piece. The Medical Staff feels they 

still want to foster that learning piece. Dr. Crofts said mentorship specific to work in the practice is 

defined in the privileges form, not in the bylaws. She said it is based on your years of services. She said 

we always work to ensure we are practicing safe care. Dr. Crofts said privileges are a work in progress, 

too. Dr. Sowada said the bylaws will be brought back in January for approval of the specific changes, 

not the full document. 

 

Patient Safety Plan 

 

The motion to approve the Patient Safety Plan as presented was made by Judge James; second by Mr. 

Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

Professional Practice Review Plan 

 

Dr. Sowada said this is a second read but it was a long document and took some time to review. She 

asked for more information on stewardship information that was removed. Ms. Stephanie Mlinar, 

Director of Quality, said when read by the Medical Staff at Peer Review, they did not consider it 

utilization review and did not interpret that way so they asked for the language to be removed. Dr. Crofts 

said if it’s a measure, we need meaningful data. She reviewed systemwide OPPE and said it is not that 

the Medical Staff doesn’t think utilization is important, it’s just not for OPPE. Dr. Sowada said she 

understands data must be meaningful and impactful. The motion to approve the Professional Practice 

Review Plan as presented was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

5/130



 

 

Minutes of the December 4, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 of 6 

 

Credentials Committee Privilege Forms 

 

FPPE Policy and Attachments: The motion to approve the Focused Professional Practice Policy (FPPE) 

form as presented was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Health Equity Plan 

 

Ms. Mlinar provided an overview and said we revamped the charter to have a lot smaller work group 

with a focus on specific patient data. She said this showed up on our October Care Compare report for 

the first time. Dr. Sowada said this is a CMS and a Joint Commission initiative. She thanked Ms. Mlinar 

for slimming the group down and tailoring it to fit in Sweetwater County. 

 

SENIOR LEADER REPORTS 

 

Dr. Sowada thanked the Senior Leaders for submitting written reports and asked if anyone had any 

questions. She said the reports are meaningful and provide information that the Trustees don’t always 

hear otherwise. She said the information is really helpful and definitely appreciated. Mr. Kelsey said he 

really appreciates the written reports and thanked the Senior Leaders for going to that effort to make this 

happen. He noted the Information Services Director has done a nice job for the Hospital. He is not a 

Senior Leader but Mr. Kelsey would like a brief oral presentation to the Board at an upcoming meeting. 

Mr. Kelsey said he would like the Board to hear from him because his group has a lot going on and is 

doing a good job.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson reported The Joint Commission (TJC) was here November 12. We had a successful 

survey with minimal findings. She thanked everyone who helped in this process and met with the 

surveyors as well as everyone providing support. Ms. Richardson said we are looking forward to moving 

forward with our Critical Access designation. Ms. Mlinar was recognized for making an extra proactive 

effort to contact TJC to mitigate a finding. Ms. Richardson said we continue to work on the Strategic 

Plan. We are hearing a lot of great things in the leadership training. We presented at the Pulse of 

Southwest Wyoming meeting. Ms. Richardson thanked Ms. Pendleton, Mr. Rood, and Commissioner 

Jones for being there. She said we gave an update on upcoming legislation. We asked the group to keep 

workplace violence on their minds because this is a very important issue and legislation did not pass last 

year. There is a provider enrollment bill this year. The group talked about the OB Deserts in Wyoming 

and what the state’s role may be in the process. Ms. Richardson said we brought in Clifton Larson Allen 

to help us with our revenue cycle improvement work. Their work comes to a close at the end of December 

and we will move forward to keep momentum going. A Board Special Meeting is planned January 28 to 

review the Master Plan. We will discuss prioritization and funding. Ms. Richardson thanked everyone 

for helping us offer a wonderful Veterans Day lunch event. We had an OB onsite visit scheduled but the 

person was not able to come onsite as planned. We are having to cover with Locums and doing the best 

we can. There are 2,200 openings in OB right now so we are competing with everyone for providers. 

Ms. Richardson invited everyone to join us for our Community Christmas Event December 6 and walk 

with us in the Rock Springs Lighted Parade December 7. The employee holiday meals are scheduled 

December 12. Ms. Richardson thanked staff for everything they have done all year. She said we are all 

working on so many things and everyone is doing a great job. She wished everyone a Merry Christmas. 

 

6/130



 

 

Minutes of the December 4, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 of 6 

 

PRESIDENT OF THE MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts said the Medical Staff met before Thanksgiving. She said everyone appreciated the meal 

provided by Ms. Richardson. Dr. Crofts thanked Ms. Downs and her team for putting everything together 

and for all they do. She said new officers and department chairs have been elected. Dr. Alicia Gray is 

the incoming Medical Staff President. Dr. Crofts said she has appreciated all the support and 

encouragement she has received in her role. She said she is excited for her colleagues to take on their 

new roles. Dr. Crofts thanked the OR staff for all the help they have provided to her with her cases. She 

wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. Dr. Sowada thanked Dr. Crofts for all she 

has done for the Medical Staff and the Hospital. She wishes her a lot of success in her next steps and 

new roles. Ms. Mlinar thanked her for being instrumental in helping us look at the right things and spend 

time on the right things.   

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Buildings & Ground Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said he couldn’t attend the last meeting. He shared a concern that the oncology suite project 

seems to be dragging out forever. Ms. Love, Chief Financial Officer, said there has been an issue with 

getting subcontractors back in there. She said it sounded like we are pretty close to finishing. Mr. Kelsey 

said there is also a concern with parking and wants to ensure this is being addressed in the Master Plan. 

 

Governance Committee 

Mr. Kelsey said the group can’t do much until they get the policy about policies with Mr. Phillips’ 

approval and then they can bring that to the Board for review. 

 

Finance & Audit Committee 

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net bad debt and recoveries as presented of $2,066,929.38 was 

made by Mr. Kelsey, second by Judge James. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kelsey said expenses seem to be under control and we saw a slight gain. He said we decided we 

need a continuing effort on the part of staff to provide detailed information to keep things on track. We 

are seeing some progress. We would like to see a high-level summary report. Mr. Kelsey said we all 

know this is a very important thing and we need to make absolutely sure we have the right people on the 

bus – competent and trained - to make sure it happens.    

 

All other committee information is in the meeting packet. 

 

CONTRACTS 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

Dr. Sowada asked Ms. Richardson to provide a brief overview of each of the contracts she signed. Ms. 

Love was invited to review. 

 

 

 

7/130



 

 

Minutes of the December 4, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 

GOOD OF ORDER 

 

The January meeting date was moved from January 1 to January 8 due to the holiday.  

 

Ms. Richardson said she promoted Ms. Jodi Cheese to Practice Manager at the Specialty Clinics and Ms. 

Misty Cozad to Practice Manager at the Family Medicine and Walk-In Clinics. She said both have been 

added to the Leadership Team and are doing a great job.  

 

Ms. Richardson thanked Dr. Crofts for her service as Medical Staff President. She said she has done an 

excellent job and is appreciated. 

 

Mr. Kelsey gave a shout out to the IT Department, particularly Mr. Terry Thompson, Director, and Mr. 

Abram Jewell for their work to get a new iPad working for him.  

 

Dr. Sowada wished everyone a merry Christmas, Happy New Year, and any holidays they are 

celebrating. She encouraged everyone to stay healthy and well, and have safe travels. 

  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 3:27 p.m. to discuss legal, personnel, and items considered 

confidential by law was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

 

The motion to leave the executive session and return to the regular session at 4:51 p.m. was made by 

Judge James; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Pursuant to the notice provided in the agenda, the Board of Trustees held discussions and action was 

taken.  

 

The motion to grant clinical privileges and appointments to the medical staff as discussed in executive 

session was made by Judge James; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical Privileges 

and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from November 12, 2024 

1. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Mark Neimat, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Anupam Arora, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Sheila Algan, Orthopedic Surgery 

2. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Alison Brann, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Henry Onyeaka, Tele-Psychiatry (QLER) 

3. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Rasheel Chowdhary, Pulmonary Medicine 

 Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, Family and Occupational Medicine 

8/130



 

 

Minutes of the December 4, 2024, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 of 6 

 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Christian Van Kirk, Tele-Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Jennifer Majersik, Tele-Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Lee Chung, Tele-Stroke (U of U) 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 4:53 p.m.  

  

 

   

  __________________________________ 

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

 

Attest: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Judge Nena James, Secretary 

9/130



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

December 23, 2024 
 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special meeting on 

December 23, 2024, at 11:00 a.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m.. She said the purpose of the meeting was to 

discuss personnel and legal issues. She said the Board would take action following executive 

session. The following Trustees were present: Judge Nena James, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig 

Rood, and Dr. Barbara Sowada. Mr. Marty Kelsey was excused.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Geoff 

Phillips, Legal Counsel.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 11:03 a.m. was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by 

Judge James. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to leave executive session and return to regular session at 12:51 p.m. was made by Ms. 

Pendleton; second by Judge James. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to approve the contract as discussed in executive session was made by Judge James; 

second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting adjourned at 1:01 p.m.  

 

 

 

   

       

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

      

Judge Nena James, Secretary 

10/130



 
 

                     ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date:1/8/2025  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: 
Policy – Health Equity Plan & Charter 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ☒ Revision 

 ☐ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: 
Health Equity is a regulatory requirement.  The Health Equity Plan and Charter were revised to be scaled 
to our organization.  The Charter has a significantly smaller core group with ad hoc members as needed.  
Add language about health equity reports to the Board of Trustees. 

 

 Board Committee Action: 

Second read for the Health Equity Plan &  Charter 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ☐ For Review Only 

 ☒ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ☐ In House Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 

 ☐ Board  Comments:Click or tap here to enter text. 

 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
   

11/130



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 16973967 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

Quality & Risk 
Management 

Reg. 
Standards 

TJC NPSG 
16.01.01 

Health Equity Plan 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 
Consistent with MHSC's mission, vision, and values this plan establishes the parameters of the 
Hospital’s efforts to promote health care equity by addressing disparities in health care. This plan 
addresses guidelines for identifying, analyzing, addressing, and monitoring disparities in health care 
among the patient populations served by the Hospital; to minimize inequities; and to increase quality and 
safety in an equitable fashion for all patients. 

Definitions 
I. Health care disparities – Preventable differences in the burden of disease, injury, violence, or 

opportunities to achieve optimal health, health quality or health outcomes that are experienced 
by socially disadvantagedunderserved populations. 

II. Health equity – A state in which every person can achieve their full health potential, and in 
which no person is prevented from achieving this potential because of socially-determined 
circumstances. 

III. Health-related social needs (HRSNs) – Health-harming conditions often identified as root 
causes of disparities in health outcomes. 

Responsibilities and Reporting Structure 
Leadership is responsible for the following: 

I. Establishing Health Equity as an organizational priority 

II. Establishing the processes by which the Hospital addresses health care disparities 

III. Naming a health care equity leader(s) to lead the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives 

IV. Maintaining and implementing this plan and its associated policies and procedures 

The Heath Equity TeamCommittee's executive sponsor is chaired by the Chief Clinical Officer and. The 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 11/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/16973967/. Copyright

© 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 8

12/130



DRAFT

chairs are the Director of Quality and a Quality Analyst. Please see attached Health Equity Charter for 
membership and further details. 

The health care equity team does the following: 

I. Plans, organizes, and leads all activities related to the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives, 
including but not limited to the following: 

A. Assessing patients’ health-related social needs (HRSNs) 

B. Identifying health care disparities in its patient population 

C. Responding to identified health care disparities through written action plans 

II. Monitors performance related to health care equity action plans and responding when goal(s) 
are not met or sustained 

III. Identifies internal and external stakeholders to serve as resources and partners in the health 
care equity program and its activities, including but not limited to the following: 

A. Hospital leaders, managers, and staff members 

B. Relevant community organizations 

C. Relevant government agencies 

IV. Communicates with internal and external partners and stakeholders about the health care 
equity program and its activities and progress in reducing identified health care disparities, as 
appropriate. 

The Health Equity Committee is responsible for adhering to the attached Health Equity Charter. 

Objectives 
I. To establish and refine processes forPlans, organizes, leads and evaluates all activities related 

to the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives related to patient care, including but not limited 
to the following: 

A. Collecting information about patients’ HRSNs 

B. ProvidingCollecting information and assessing patients with information about 
internal and external resources and support services that address their ’ health-
related social needs (HRSNs) 

1. Providing patients with information about internal and external resources 
and support services that address their HRSNs 

C. Identifying a health care disparity or disparities in the Hospital’sits patient population 

D. Development of not less than one written action plan to address identified health 
care disparitiesDeveloping and responding to at least one identified health care 
disparity through a written action plan 

II. Monitors performance related to the health care equity action plan and responds when goal(s) 
are not met or sustained 

III. Identifies internal and external stakeholders to serve as resources and partners in the health 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 11/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/16973967/. Copyright

© 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 8

13/130



DRAFT

care equity program and its activities, including but not limited to the following: 

A. Hospital leaders, managers, and staff members 

B. Relevant community organizations 

C. Relevant government agencies 

IV. Communicates with internal and external partners and stakeholders about the health care 
equity program and its activities and progress in reducing identified health care disparities, as 
appropriate 

V. To describeDescribes processes and expectations for orientation and education, performance 
monitoring, and annual evaluation of this plan and its related policies and procedures. 

VI. Provides annual report to the Board Quality Committee and Board of Trustees 

Processes 
I. Collecting Patient HRSNs Information 

A. To identify health care disparities with the goal of reducing or eliminating those 
disparities, the Hospital must identify who its patients are, what HRSNs they have, 
and what obstacles they face in accessing care. This is accomplished by collecting 
information about their HRSNs. This process is ongoing, as relevant factors change 
frequently in response to social, economic, environmental, organizational, and 
individual changes. The goal is to connect patients with existing services and inform 
the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives. 

B. The health care equity team performs the following activities: 

1. Determines the HRSNs for which patient information will be collected. 
These might include but are not limited to the following: 

a. Access to transportation 

b. Difficulty paying for prescriptions or medical bills 

c. Education and literacy 

d. Food insecurity 

e. Housing insecurity 

f. Access to child care 

2. Determines whether the HRSNs will be collected for all the Hospital’s 
patients or for a representative sample of the Hospital’s patients. 

3. Creates standardized forms (paper, electronic, or a combination of the 
two) for collecting identified HRSNs information. 

4. Establish and standardize training and competencies for collection of 
HRSNs information for staff who participate in patient admission and/or 
assessment 

5. Seeks input and feedback on quality of HRSNs information collection 
processes from staff members, patients, community partners, and other 
stakeholders. 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 11/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/16973967/. Copyright

© 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 3 of 8

14/130



DRAFT

6. Considers this input and feedback when evaluating the relevance and 
effectiveness of HRSNs information collection processes. 

II. Connecting PatientsCollection of Patient HRSNs information to identify health care disparities 
with Services and Supportthe goal of reducing or eliminating those disparities. 

A. The hospital has identified collection of HRSNs for inpatients 18 years of age and 
older at a minimum 

B. The health care team will coordinate with interdisciplinary team members to address 
identified HRSNs found through using the PRAPARE survey. The HRSNs might 
include but are not limited to the following: 

1. Access to transportation 

2. Difficulty paying for prescriptions or medical bills 

3. Education and literacy 

4. Food insecurity 

5. Housing insecurity 

6. Access to child care 

C. The goal is to connect patients with existing services and inform the Hospital 
provides patients with information about relevant services and support programs 
that are available to address their identified HRSNs’s health care equity initiatives. 

1. Identifies existing internal programs and services that are available to help 
address patients’ HRSNs 

2. Identifies existing partnerships with community-based organizations, 
programs, and government agencies that are available to help address 
identified HRSNs 

3. Maintains a list of identified programs and services, including current 
contact information and other relevant details, as applicable (MHSC 
Resource Book) 

4. Reviews the list periodically and updates it when necessary to reflect 
changes and ensure its accuracy 

5. The health care equity team performs the following activities: 

a. Identifies existing internal programs and services that are 
available to help address patients’ HRSNs. 

b. Identifies existing partnerships with community-based 
organizations, programs, and government agencies that are 
available to help address identified HRSNs. 

c. Maintains a list of identified programs and services, including 
current contact information and other relevant details, as 
applicable (MHSC Resource Book) 

d. Reviews the list periodically and updates it when necessary to 
reflect changes and ensure its accuracy. 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 11/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/16973967/. Copyright

© 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 4 of 8

15/130



DRAFT

e. Ensures that all relevant staff members have access to the list 
and are educated and trained on connecting patients with 
available services or programs, when necessary, based on their 
assessed HRSNs. 

i. The MHSC Resource Book is located on PolicyStat. 

Ensures that all relevant staff members have access to the list and are 
educated and trained on connecting patients with available services or 
programs, when necessary, based on their assessed HRSNs 

a. The MHSC Resource Book is located on PolicyStat 

III. Identifying and Addressing Disparities 

A. Collected patient demographic data should be used in conjunction with the 
organization’s quality and safety data to identify health care disparities among the 
various populations the Hospital serves. To identify health care disparities and 
understand which processes and outcomes vary in the populations served, the 
Hospital should compare the quality and safety metrics for various demographic 
groups. The Hospital may focus on areas with known disparities, as identified in 
evidence-based literature, or it may select measures that affect all its patients. Once 
disparities are identified, the Hospital should determine which ones to address and 
create not less than one written action plan to do so. 

B. The health care equity team performs the following activities: 

1. Determines the demographic characteristics to be used during analysis of 
HRSNs information. These characteristics may include but are not limited 
to the following: 

a. Age 

b. Race and ethnicity 

c. Preferred language 

C. Compares quality and safety data, including health outcomes when appropriate, for 
various demographic categories 

D. Identifies disparities in quality, safety, and/or health outcomes among the identified 
demographic groups 

E. Determines which disparities to address with a written action plan(s) 

F. Develops not less than one written action plan that describes how the Hospital will 
address at least one identified disparity. 

G. Performs evaluation activities related to the action plan(s), as described in the action 
plan(s). These include but are not limited to the following:Performance Monitoring 

1. Collecting and analyzing relevant data 

2. Evaluating the effectiveness of the action(s) in reducing the identified 
disparity 

3. Determining whether additional or different action(s) are necessary to 
address the identified disparity 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 11/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/16973967/. Copyright

© 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 5 of 8

16/130



DRAFT

4. Revising the action plan(s) as necessary 

a. Reports on outcomes of action plan(s) to relevant stakeholders, 
including but not limited to the following: 

i. Hospital leadership 

ii. Hospital representatives for safety, performance 
improvement, community relations, and other groups 

5. Reports at least annually on the Hospital’s progress to reduce health care 
disparities to key stakeholders, including but not limited to the following: 

a. Leadership 

b. Licensed practitioners 

c. Staff members 

6. The health care equity committee oversees development of appropriate 
performance monitors for the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives. 

a. Compares quality and safety data, including health outcomes 
when appropriate, for various demographic categories 

b. Identifies disparities in quality, safety, and/or health outcomes 
among the identified demographic groups 

c. Determines which disparities to address with a written action 
plan(s) 

d. Develops at least one written action plan that describes how the 
Hospital will address at least one identified disparity 

e. Performs evaluation of the activities related to the action plan. 

f. Reports on outcomes of action plan(s) to relevant stakeholders, 
including but not limited to the following: 

i. Hospital leadership 

ii. Hospital representatives for safety, performance 
improvement, community relations, and other groups 

g. Reports at least annually on the Hospital’s progress to reduce 
health care disparities to key stakeholders, including but not 
limited to the following: 

i. Leadership 

ii. Licensed practitioners 

iii. Staff members 

iv. Board Quality Committee and Board of Trustees 

IV. Orientation and, Education, Competencies: 

A. The Health Equity teamCommittee is tasked with developing new staff member 
orientation and job specific training, along with annual education relative to cultural 
sensitivity and health equity. The information provided will vary depending on the 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 11/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/16973967/. Copyright

© 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 6 of 8

17/130



DRAFT

individual’s job duties and responsibilities. 

B. Establish and standardize training and competencies for collection of HRSNs 
information for staff who participate in patient admission and/or assessment 

V. Performance Monitoring 

A. The health care equity team oversees development of appropriate performance 
monitors for the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives. The committee collects and 
documents data for the identified performance monitors and reports to leadership 
and, as appropriate, leaders of identified community partners and stakeholders. 

VI. Annual Evaluation 

A. The health care equity leader(s) evaluates the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives 
and this plan, including efficacy, continued relevance, and potential areas for 
improvement. This evaluation process occurs at the following times: 

1. At least annually 

2. When there are changes to the Hospital, its services, or its policies and 
procedures that could impact equitable provision of care 

3. When there are changes to the community or patient population that could 
impact equitable provision of care 

B. The results of this evaluation are reported to Hospital leadership, Board of Trustees, 
and other relevant stakeholders, as applicable 

REFERENCES 
The Joint Commission. (2023, Jan). Plan for improving health care equity. PolicySource hospital and 
critical access hospital. PolicySource: P&Ps for Compliance with Joint Commission Requirements | Joint 
Commission Resources (jcrinc.com) 

The Joint Commission. (2024, Aug). NPSG 16.01.01. Improving health care equity for the critical access 
hospital's patients is a quality and safety priority. Retrieved from: E-dition - Standards & EPs. Retrieved 
November 4, 2024 

CMS.gov. (2023, August). Health Equity. Retrieved from: Health Equity | CMS. 10.30.2024 

Reviewed and Approved: 
Health Equity Team: July 30, 2024 

Medical Executive Committee: June 27th, 2023 

Quality Committee of the Board: July 19th, 2023 

Board of Trustees: September 6th, 2023 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 11/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/16973967/. Copyright

© 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 7 of 8

18/130



DRAFT

Attachments 

Healthcare Equity Charter.docx 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 11/2024. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/16973967/. Copyright

© 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 8 of 8

19/130



Health Equity Committee Charter 

PURPOSE 
The Health Equity Committee is an interdisciplinary team charged with identifying 
healthcare disparities and recommending actions to improve them. The Committee 
reviews patient data to assess whether the delivery of care is equitable across 
demographic strata, such as race, gender, sexual orientation, and gender identity. The 
Committee may collaborate with other committees, work groups, the medical staff, and 
various hospital and clinic departments.  The Committee will report its activities and 
findings to the Patient Safety Committee and the Quality Committee of the Board at regular 
intervals. 

MEMBERSHIP 
Membership will be reviewed annually and may change from time to time according to the 
needs of the Committee.  

Internal members as of November 2024 are: 

Senior Leader Sponsor:  Chief Clinical Officer 

Chair(s) as of November 2024:  Director of Quality and Quality Analyst 

Core Members include: 

• Director, Quality or Quality Analyst 
• Informatics Representative (s) 
• Director, Care Management 
• Director, Patient Access or Patient Access Lead 
• Social Worker 
• Patient Access Representative (s) 
• Front-line staff Representative (s)  

Ad Hoc Members Include: 

• Chief Executive Officer 
• Chief Financial Officer 
• Chief Nursing Officer 
• Chief Medical Officer 
• Director, Education 

20/130



• Director, Acute Care Services or Clinical Coordinator 
• Director, Clinics or Clinical Coordinator 
• Clinical Dietician 
• Director, Cancer Center or Clinical Coordinator 
• Director, Dialysis or Clinical Coordinator 
• Director, Health Information Management 
• Financial Navigation Representative(s) 
• Community Outreach Representative 
• Infection Prevention 
• Patient Safety Committee Chair 

MEETINGS 
The Committee shall meet a minimum of monthly or at such times and frequency as 
deemed necessary and appropriate by the Chair(s). Attendance and Minutes will be 
recorded for the meetings. The Committee may invite additional individuals from time to 
time to attend and participate as needed to review, discuss, and address agenda items. 

RESPONSIBILITIES 
To fulfill its responsibilities and duties, the Committee will: 

1. Review current processes for gathering and documenting patient demographic 
data. 

2. Review and use quality metrics to stratify care rendered across demographic 
data to identify opportunities for providing more equitable care.  Review may 
include the six domains of quality 

i. Safety  
ii. Effectiveness 

iii. Patient-Centeredness 
iv. Timeliness 
v. Efficiency 

vi. Equity  
3. Develop a plan to address health equity opportunities identified by the 

Committee and engage staff to implement that plan.  
4. Monitor for success and/or needed modifications. 
5. Follow 2024-2027 Strategic Plan Initiative to promote the highest quality 

outcomes and safest care for all people. 
6. Provide an annual summary report to the Board Quality Committee and the 

Board of Trustees. 

21/130



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
Board Meeting Date: 1/8/2025 
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: Policy Stat Document: 
Employee Health Plan  
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 ___x___ Revision 
 ______ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: The Employee Health Plan is due for review. It 
was reviewed and edited for updates. Requirements for the plan include The Joint 
Commission Standards IC 04.01.01 and 04.01.03. The standards state that the 
hospital must maintain a hospital-wide infection prevention and control program 
for the surveillance, prevention, and control of healthcare-associated infections.  
In addition, OSHA Standards include, OSHA 1910.10, a plan in place for 
occupational exposure to blood and potentially infectious material.  
Recommendations came from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 
(CDC).  
 
Board Committee Action: 
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     __x_____ For Review Only 
 _______ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 _______ In House Comments: 
 _______ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: Approve the Employee Health Plan for “First 
Reading” and pending any comments suggestions, bring forward to the Board of 
Trustees in February for approval. 
Ann & Patty 

22/130



COPY

Status Pending PolicyStat ID 15508214 

Approved N/A 

Review Due 1 year after 
approval 

Document 
Area 

Employee Health 

Reg. 
Standards 

CDC, OSHA 
29 CFR 
1910.1030,
TJC 04.01.03 
+ 1 more 

CAH - Employee Health Plan (inc. forms #800263, 802926, 
802769, 802973) 

INTRODUCTION 
The primary goal of the Employee Health Plan is to provide a high level of health, wellness and safety 
among hospital employees. Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County strives to provide a safe working 
environment by ensuring that all employees are trained in the proper use of machinery, safety 
precautions and personal protective equipment. Employees will be screened to ensure they meet the 
minimum employee health standards to perform patient care activities and meet the recommendations 
of the CDC for vaccination of health care providers. The policy applies to all employees, contract 
employees, students, shadowers, medical staff, and volunteers (hereafter referred to as the "employee"). 

ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT OF THE 
PLAN 

I. RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. The employee health department receives regular input from the Infection Control 
Committee and the Environment of Care Committee. Pertinent policies and 
procedures must be approved by the appropriate committee before being 
incorporated or appended to the plan. 

B. Each individual department Director is responsible for implementing and enforcing 
the Employee Health Plan within his/her department. 

II. AUTHORITY 

A. The final authority on employee health issues is the Chief Executive Officer 

1. Except in cases of communicable disease outbreak control, when 
emergency measures are instituted by Employee Health with approval of 

CAH - Employee Health Plan (inc. forms #800263, 802926, 802769, 802973). Retrieved 12/2024. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15508214/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 8

23/130



COPY

the Infection Control Physician or designee, and/or the chair of the 
Infection Control Committee, with knowledge of the Chief Executive Officer 

III. RECORD KEEPING 

A. The employee health records are maintained in the Employee Health Department 
and are considered confidential records. 

B. The following persons may access the Employee Health Record: 

1. Employee health nurse or infection control/employee health director 

2. Anyone who has WRITTEN consent from the employee 

3. The employee with WRITTEN consent 

4. OSHA or other regulatory personnel on site 

C. The format and content of the employee health record are standardized. 

1. Employee Health Inventory (Form # 800263 - attached) or the Employee 
Health Inventory for Students/Shadower/Observer (Form # 802926 - 
attached) 

2. Immunizations and titers 

3. Fit test record and OSHA Respirator Medical Evaluation Questionnaire 

4. TST, IGRA or Converter's Assessment/CXR record (if applicable) 

5. Influenza immunizations 

6. Color Vision for clinical staff upon hire- Education Department 

7. All other work related documents 

D. Health records of hospital auxiliaries are maintained by the employee health nurse, 
persons who have access to employee health records also have access to the 
volunteer health records. 

E. Records will be maintained for 30 years following termination. After 30 years these 
records will be destroyed. 

IV. CONFIDENTIALITY 

A. All employee health information is held in strict confidence by all persons treating or 
testing the employee, or having access to the employee health record. 

B. To reduce the possibility of intentional or inadvertent leaks of confidential 
information, employee identification numbers may be used on all employee health 
documents and correspondence, unless the document or correspondence is being 
directed out of the hospital to an equally confidential source. 

C. Employee health information may be released only after the employee has signed a 
Consent to Release of Medical Information. 

V. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITY 

A. All projected expenses incurred by the Employee Health Plan are budgeted by the 
Infection PreventionEmployee Health Department. 

CAH - Employee Health Plan (inc. forms #800263, 802926, 802769, 802973). Retrieved 12/2024. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15508214/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 8

24/130



COPY

B. Expenses incurred by treatment plans, with the exception of worker's compensation 
claims, delineated by the employee health requirements, are paid for from the 
Employee Health budget of the Infection Prevention Department. 

C. New hires, current employees, and volunteer staff costs will be covered by Memorial 
Hospital of Sweetwater County with the exception of pre-exsisting conditions (for 
example TB infection prior to hire) 

D. Non-employed staff, students, and shadowers will be financially responsible for 
meeting the requirements of the plan prior to arrival, please see policy #941517 

EMPLOYEE HEALTH REQUIREMENTS 
I. Employment 

A. Health Inventory: Employees are required to complete a Health Inventory Form upon 
employment (Form #802672 or #802926). 

B. TB 

1. Tuberculin skin test (TST), Annual PPD Converter's Assessment (Form # 
802691), plus chest x-ray or IGRA test results if history of past positive 
reaction are required. TST will be done on all employees at hire, and after a 
suspected or confirmed exposure to Tuberculosis (TB). All non employed 
staff will be required to submit annual test results. 

a. Employees who have not had a documented TST in the last 12 
months, will have a 2 step TST done 1 to 3 weeks after the first, 
with the first being completed prior to patient contact. 

b. Employees who have history of a positive TST will be 
reassessed annually using the converter form. Frequency of CXR 
will be determined by an experienced primary care provider, 
however, annually or at a regularly scheduled time is not 
recommended by the CDC. 

i. Education will be provided by the Employee Health 
Nurse regarding what signs and symptoms the 
employee should watch for regarding conversion. 

ii. If a new employee has had a previous positive TST, the 
employee will need to provide a copy of the last chest 
x-ray or have a two view (PA/Lateral) performed. 

iii. A chest x-ray and evaluation by an experienced 
provider will be ordered if symptoms develop 
(persistent cough, weight loss, anorexia, fever) in an 
employee with a history of TB or if recently exposed to 
TB. 

c. The employee health physician will be notified of all positive TST 
reactions. 

d. The Wyoming Department of Health will be notified of all TB 
conversions. 

CAH - Employee Health Plan (inc. forms #800263, 802926, 802769, 802973). Retrieved 12/2024. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15508214/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 3 of 8

25/130



COPY

e. The hospital is not responsible for any reimbursement for 
medical care of an employee who is TST positive at time of hire. 

C. Mumps, Rubella, Rubeola, and Varicella 

1. Required immunity to Rubella, Rubeola, Mumps and Varicella will be 
documented. 

a. Laboratory evidence of serologic immunity or 2 MMR and 2 
Varicella vaccines. 

b. If not immune, employee will be given MMR or Varicella 
vaccination according to manufacturer guidelines at no cost to 
the employee. 

c. In the event of an outbreak, those without documented immunity 
or documentation of vaccines will be excluded from high-risk 
areas. 

D. Hepatitis B 

1. Required immunity to Hepatitis B virus will be documented. 

a. Immunity will be determined by the presence of a 3 
dosecompleted Hepatitis B vaccination series AND positive 
serologic immunity. 

b. If not immune, employee will be given Hepatitis B vaccination 
according to manufacturer guidelines at no cost to the 
employee. 

c. If the employee has received the maximum number of hepatitis 
B vaccinevaccines and fails to show immunity the employee will 
be documented as a "nonresponder" and will be counseled on 
the increased risk in the event of an exposure. 

E. Tetanus, Diptheria and Pertussis 

1. A TDAP or TD will be given to all new employees who are not up to date or 
who have not been immunized for pertussis, especially in areas in contact 
with children or neonates. 

a. All employees will be offered the appropriate booster every 10 
years. 

F. Respiratory Protection 

1. All employees will be evaluated by Employee Health for their need to wear 
a tight fitting respirator. If deemed necessary for their job duties, they will 
complete the OSHA respirator medical evaluation questionnaire (Form 
#802187) and if medically able, will be fit tested. . 

a. Employees failing fit testing or unable to be tested will be 
excluded from patient care areas where Airborne Precautions 
are required. 

G. All employees will receive a Employee Health Requirements checklist (Form # 

CAH - Employee Health Plan (inc. forms #800263, 802926, 802769, 802973). Retrieved 12/2024. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15508214/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 4 of 8

26/130



COPY

802672 - attached) prior to hire to aid them in compiling the necessary requirements. 

II. Exemptions 

A. It is mandatory for employees to receive all of the above vaccines for the safety of 
their patients and for their own personal safety. If the employee has a stated medical 
contraindication to vaccination they will be evaluated by the employee health 
physician and may be granted exemption. 

1. Medical exemption may include the following: 

a. Immune deficiency, suppressed immune responses that occur 
with leukemia, lymphoma, therapy with corticosteroids, 
antimetabolites, or radiation. 

b. Pregnancy 

c. Allergy 

B. Employees will have 30 days from notification of a delinquency to comply with the 
Employee Health Plan. 

C. Employees will not be permitted to work past the 30 day notification and employees 
will be required to use PTO for time off during this time. If the employee has not 
complied with this requirement within two (2) weeks of the final notification the 
employee will be terminated unless there are approved conditions or situations that 
prevent the employee from completing the requirement. All exceptions to 
terminations must be approved by the Chief Executive Officer. 

For all vaccine administrations, the most up to date vaccine information statement (VIS) will be offered 
to the employee at time of administration to meet federal guidelines. 

AN EMPLOYEE MAY ATTEND ORIENTATION/EDUCATION WHILE AWAITING RESULTS OF BLOOD TESTING 
IF NOT IMMEDIATELY AVAILABLE UPON HIRE. AN EMPLOYEE WILL NOT BE PERMITTED TO HAVE 
PATIENT CONTACT UNTIL RESULTS HAVE BEEN VERIFIED BY EMPLOYEE HEALTH. 

I. Annual Requirements 

A. An Annual TB Facility Assessment will be conducted by the Employee Health Nurse 
and Infection Preventionist which will determine the current TB risk, and the need for 
annual testing. 

B. All Employees are required to take part in the Annual Influenza Vaccine Clinic, Policy 
#1103869. 

C. All employees whose job duties require the use of a tight fitting respirator will be fit 
tested annually. 

II. Student/Shadowers and Contract Health Requirements 

A. Refer to Student/Contract Employees/Medical Staff Health Requirements Policy 
#941517 

B. Costs for volunteers (MHSC Auxiliary members) will be paid by the hospital and 
follow the same standards as hospital employees 

CAH - Employee Health Plan (inc. forms #800263, 802926, 802769, 802973). Retrieved 12/2024. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15508214/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 5 of 8

27/130



COPY

EMPLOYEE ILLNESS OR INJURY 
1. Employees who become ill before they begin work will notify their supervisor before the 

designated starting time according to personnel policy. Supervisors will then notify Employee 
Health. 

2. Employees who report to work ill, or who become ill at work, will notify their supervisor 
immediately. At the supervisor's discretion, the employee may be sent to the Employee Health 
Department. The Employee Health Nurse will determine the need to send the employee home, 
to the ER for examination by an emergency room physician, or to a private physician. 

3. Employees off work because of illness or injury for longer than two days, or who are returning 
to work from a medical leave of absence, may be asked to present a work release signed by 
their their private physician to their supervisor. Employees restricted from work because of a 
significant communicable disease will have their work releases evaluated by the Employee 
Health Nurse or Infection Control, before they may return to work. Work releases are to be sent 
to Infection Control/Employee Health. In turn, Employee Health will forward a copy to Human 
Resources, if not already given to HR. 

4. Any employee with a work-related injury who seeks medical treatment must present a work 
release or restriction document to their Department Supervisor before returning to work. The 
Department Supervisor will then forward the document to Employee Health or Human 
Resources. 

5. Employees injured on the job – however minor the injury may appear – are encouraged to 
complete an Employee Packet (which includes Wyoming Report of Injury Form) and notify their 
supervisor who will complete a Supervisors Investigation of an Employee Incident report 
(Refer to Employee Packet) in its entirety, and report to the Employee Health Department, or 
Emergency Department if after hours for evaluation. Employees who do not report injuries 
within 72 hours of occurrence may be ineligible for hospital funded treatment for 
complications of the injury. Notification within 24 hours is preferred. 

EXPOSURE TO COMMUNICABLE DISEASE 
I. An incident report will be completed for any employee potentially exposed to a communicable 

disease in the MHSC occurrence reporting system.The employee supervisor will complete the 
gray packet (Supervisor Investigation of Employee Accident Form and sign the Worker's 
Compensation forms). The Infection Preventionist will conduct case contact investigations as 
needed and delineated in Infection Control Nurse will conduct case contact investigations as 
needed and delineated in Infection Control Policy. 

A. Once the determination, through case contact investigation, of true exposure of an 
employee or employees to a communicable disease is made, work restrictions will 
be instituted according to the CDC guidelines. Work restrictions may be initiated by a 
department director with consideration of the Infection Control/Employee Health 
Director, but are enforced by the Infection Control Committee. 

II. Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County follows current CDC guidelines for exposures to 
communicable diseases, including time off work, and job restrictions due to disease. 

III. See Reporting Communicable Diseases 

CAH - Employee Health Plan (inc. forms #800263, 802926, 802769, 802973). Retrieved 12/2024. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15508214/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 6 of 8

28/130



COPY
Attachments 

800263P Employee Health Inventory 03.24R.pdf 

802769 - Employee Health Requirements 1.24.pdf 

802926 - EMPLOYEE HEALTH INVENTORY FOR STUDENTS-SHADOWER-OBSERVER & VOUNTEER 
03.24R.pdf 

802973 - Employee Health Provider Orders 10.24.pdf 

EXPOSURE TO HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES 
I. All employees identified as having routine exposure to hazardous substances, such as 

chemotherapy medications, will have a medical screening, TST and/or basic laboratory testing 
performed annually as indicated by the Employee Health Physician. 

II. Females who are pregnant or breast-feedingbreastfeeding and/or any person actively trying to 
conceive a child will be reassigned to dutiesacknowledge that do not involvethey are aware of 
the risks involved with the handling of hazardous medications. These individuals will wear the 
appropriate PPE for handling hazardous drugs. The Hazardous Drug Risk Acknowledgment 
form will be signed at the time of hire. Staff member may ask to be reassigned. MHSC will do 
all that we can to reassign staff. 

III. Link to Chemical and Drug Handlers Health Surveillance History 

Approval: 
Infection Control Committee - Nov. 7, 2018; HR Committee - February 18, 2019 

Reviewed and Approved: 

Infection Control Committee: 11/14/2024 

MEC: 12/2/2024 

HR Committee: 

REFERENCES: 
Medical Surveillance for Healthcare Workers Exposed to Hazardous Drugs Department of Health and 
Human Services https://www.cdc.gov/niosh/docs/wp-solutions/2013-103/pdfs/2013-103.pdf 

Healthcare Workers Handling Hazardous Drugs Should Be Monitored in Surveillance Program Oncology 
Nursing Society https://www.ons.org/practice-resources/clinical-practice/healthcare-workers-handling-
hazardous-drugs-should-be-monitoredhttps://www.ons.org/practice-resources/clinical-practice/
healthcare-workers-handling-hazardous-drugs-should-be-monitored 

CAH - Employee Health Plan (inc. forms #800263, 802926, 802769, 802973). Retrieved 12/2024. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15508214/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 7 of 8

29/130



COPY

EHP TB & Vaccine Information.docx 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Ann Clevenger: CNO Pending 

Medical Director Cielette Karn: Laboratory & IP 
Medical Director, T&B Chair 

11/2024 

Patty O'Lexey: Education 
Director 

11/2024 

Nicole Burke: Employee Health 
Supervisor 

10/2024 

Reg. Standards 

CDC, OSHA 29 CFR 1910.1030, TJC 04.01.03, TJC IC 04.01.01 

CAH - Employee Health Plan (inc. forms #800263, 802926, 802769, 802973). Retrieved 12/2024. Official copy at

http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/15508214/. Copyright © 2024 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 8 of 8

30/130



 

MHSC Board of Trustees: January 2025 

Chief Clinical Officer (CCO) Report 

Report prepared and submitted by: Kari Quickenden, Pharm.D., MHSA 

1. Our nuclear medicine equipment has been down since 12/18/2024 due to a safety recall by the manufacturer in 

which the detector could injure a patient.  We were contacted by the manufacturer directly on 12/18/2024 and 

instructed to scan no further patients until a service engineer could evaluate the equipment.  It is important to note 

there were no injuries at MHSC due to this safety alert.  

2. Our fluoroscopy room has been out of service since 12/23/2024.  The equipment is at the end of its life and has 

experienced an electrical issue, which would require a significant amount of money to repair.  MHSC received 

new fluoroscopy equipment in November 2024 and placed it in storage.  The purchase was part of our master 

agreement to upgrade some medical imaging equipment.  We are awaiting updates from the contractor on the 

projected construction start date for medical imaging.  We can perform some procedures typically done in the 

fluoroscopy room with a C-arm.  However, some procedures are unavailable until the remodel and installation of 

the new equipment are complete.  

3. The College Hill laboratory location received their waived Cepheid analyzer.  The analyzer will enable staff to 

perform waived testing, such as the multiplex respiratory panel that includes Influenza A, Influenza B, RSV, and 

COVID at the College Hill location.  The test is performed on one sample and one test cartridge and is cheaper 

and more sensitive than the testing currently performed.  The testing currently performed requires a separate swab 

for influenza, RSV, and COVID, resulting in swabbing the patient three times.  Patients only need to be swabbed 

once when the new analyzer is live.  The planned go-live is in March.   

4. As part of our strategic plan and endeavor to strive for zero preventable harm, MHSC is preparing to join a Patient 

Safety Organization (PSO).  We are in the process of evaluating a proposal from Press Ganey.  Participating in a 

PSO will assist us in meeting the new CMS Patient Safety Structural Measures, which we must attest to in 2025.  

The Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ) established PSOs under the Patient Safety and Quality 

Improvement Act.  PSOs provide the following benefits: 

a. Learn and share with industry peers in a legally protected, confidential forum  

b. Help identify threats to quality, safety, and reliability 

c. Protect confidential safety events and cause analysis data 

d. Recommend methods to reduce harm 

e. Encourage and advance a culture of speaking up for safety 

Additionally, joining a PSO will assist us with improving the methodology for categorizing and tracking/trending 

our occurrence report data (another strategic plan initiative) as we will submit our occurrence reports to the PSO.   

5. MHSC is slightly altering the main morning huddle.  As part of the CMS Patient Safety Structural Measures and 

as we continue working towards Planetree certification, MHSC will implement tiered and escalating safety 

huddles at least five days a week, with one day being a weekend, that includes key clinical and non-clinical units 

and leaders beginning 01/06/2025.  MSCH will utilize the MESSS (methods, equipment, supplies, staffing, and 

safety) Huddle Tracking Form from Planetree to actively identify safety concerns and follow up accordingly. 

6. Kari Quickenden, Ann Clevenger, and Stephanie Mlinar will begin formal TEAM STEPPS training in January.  

The training consists of eight sessions and goes through mid-March.  Attendance of the training will enable 

quality leadership and clinical senior leadership to assist with training and reinforcement of TEAM STEPPS 

skills.  We plan to incorporate TEAM STEPPS training into the initial onboarding of all MSCH staff once we 

have redundancy in trainers.  

7. MHSC administered the combined culture of safety and employee engagement survey in the fall of 2024.  It was 

our second year administering the culture of safety survey with the vendor (Press Ganey), so we have comparative 

data.  We have reviewed very high-level data and will form action plans based on the results.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kari Quickenden  

31/130



MHSC Board of Trustees: January 2025 

Chief Experience Officer (CXO) Report 

 

I am so grateful for the opportunity to lead in this new role and continue working with everyone at MHSC to improve the 

human experience. As I begin the journey in this new role, I will align the monthly report to strategic plan initiatives 

updates.  

Irene is going to update the organization chart. I have been making preliminary plans to shadow in the departments I will 

lead. Irene has invited the Senior Leaders to conduct a SWOT analysis and I am scheduling to begin that process in 

January.   

1. Patient Experience Pillar 

A. Continue to utilize our person-centered care culture to improve the patient experience and improve the 

satisfaction for our patients. 
 

Person-Centered Care Committee: The Committee completed the review of the final submission for our 

application for Excellence in Person-Centered Care and the application was finalized and submitted at the 

end of December. We anticipate an onsite lived experience survey in early 2025. The Committee continues to 

check in on staff with different questions each month to look for ways to improve the employee experience. We 

will continue the process in 2025 and plan to utilize the Gallup Organization “Best Places to Work” 

questions: 

    How satisfied are you with your company as a place to work? 

    I know what is expected of me at work. 

    I have the materials and equipment I need to do my work right. 

    At work, I have the opportunity to do what I do best every day. 

    In the last seven days, I have received recognition or praise for doing good work. 

    My supervisor, or someone at work, seems to care about me as a person. 

    There is someone at work who encourages my development. 

    At work, my opinions seem to count. 

    The mission or purpose of my company makes me feel my job is important. 

    My associates and fellow employees are committed to doing quality work. 

    I have a best friend at work. 

    In the last six months, someone at work has talked to me about my progress. 

    This last year, I have had opportunities at work to learn and grow. 
 

Patient & Family Advisory Council Partners: The PFAC did not meet in December. We are enlisting their 

involvement in our lactation room design. We will present at Young at Heart for their Lunch and Learn 

Program on Tuesday, January 28. The next meeting is set for Monday, January 27, and we have asked the 

group to identify a department that they feel passion for to identify partners to help us develop “signature 

moments” for our patients throughout the Hospital.  
 

Person-Centered Care & Communicating With Empathy Workshops: 1,063 people (staff, volunteers, trustees, 

community members) have completed the Experiential Workshop since we started providing them in 2019. 

91% of current staff on the payroll have completed the workshop. 847 people have completed the 

Communicating With Empathy Workshop since we started providing them in 2021. 87% of current staff on 

the payroll have completed the workshop. We incorporated both workshops into new employee orientation 

once each month effective November 2022 and plan to offer twice each month during both orientation 

sessions beginning in January 2025. We are looking at some innovative ideas for annual person-centered 

care refresher opportunities in 2025.  
 

1) Objective: Provide compassionate care to every life we touch for every patient, every time, aligning with 

the mission, vision and values of MHSC.  

a) Measurement: “Degree to which all staff showed compassion” Improve HCAHPS score by 3 

percentage points per year. 

2) Objective: Improve patient experience and patient satisfaction scores.  

32/130



a) Measurement: Improve HCAHPS scores by 3 percentage points per year in the following measures: 

 Hospital Environment 

 Discharge Information 

 Care Transitions 

 I am scheduled to begin reporting on our patient experience data in regular meetings in 2025.  

B. Build the capacity of our Directors through a formal training program.  
 

PEAK Consulting kicked off the leadership training series in September 2024. There are three group 

“cohorts” for the team. Everyone had one large session together, then one in-person session in their groups. 

Everyone will have completed four online sessions before completion. The Senior Leaders completed their 

online training December 3. The other groups will complete the series the first full week in January. 

Feedback has been good and we look forward to seeing the benefit of the training moving forward. . 
 

C. Dedicate one Senior Leadership meeting per month to the implementation and management of the 3-year 

strategic plan and working more strategically to communicate, coach, and lead the organization to achieve our 

overall goal. 
 

Senior Leader weekly meetings have been moved to Thursdays. The group designated the final Thursday of 

each month to focus on the strategic plan.   
 

2. Employee Experience Pillar 

A. Improve employee retention and employee satisfaction for a happier, healthier staff. 

1) Objective: Weave our culture throughout HR and management practices to recruit, reward, and retain 

staff committed to carrying out our mission. 

a) Measurement: Reduce staff turnover by 10% per year, using the current turnover rate.  

b) Measurement: Improve our employee engagement scores by 3% per year. 
 

Press Ganey administered the 2024 employee engagement survey. The survey is closed and results 

were shared with Senior Leaders on January 2. A communication plan will be developed as well as 

an action plan. Turnover numbers were reviewed at the December regular meeting.   
 

B. Hire a consultant to help us evaluate and review salaries at a minimum of every three years. 
 

Gallagher completed the study. Information was reviewed with the Human Resources Committee. A copy of 

the presentation is available on the portal in the December Human Resources Committee packet.  
 

C. Directors will attend a comprehensive program to further develop relationships across departments and 

support each other. 
 

PEAK Consulting information shown above in 1B. 
 

D. Develop plan for success sharing bonus for employees if goals are reached..  
 

Bonus success sharing was awarded to staff in 2024. Employees regularly express appreciation for the gift. 

We will continue to evaluate future opportunities. 

In relation to the Board Governance Experience, the Self-Assessment Survey was completed December 16. NRC 

prepared a report to share with the Governance Committee on January 20. Results can be presented to the Board of 

Trustees at the February 5 meeting. Two additional questions developed by the Board were also distributed for 

response. Results will be shared with the Governance Committee on January 20. 

Four trustees are registered to participate in the American Hospital Association Rural Healthcare Conference February 

23-26 in San Antonio.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Cindy Nelson  

33/130



MHSC Board of Trustees: January 2025 

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Report 

Report prepared and submitted by:  Tami Love 

 

Financial summary - Revenue was down slightly in November, coming in at $23.8 million and over 
budget by $1 million.  Expenses came in at $11.3 million, $219,000 over budget.  Our bottom line for 
November is a gain of $4,937.  Year-to-date, gross revenue remains over budget by $4.8 million and 
expenses remain under budget by $1.2 million.   November inpatient volumes were lower than 
expected for the month with outpatient visits remaining high across most ancillary 
services.  Revenue is projected to be $23.8 million in December, under budget, and expenses 
should be close to budget, resulting in another break even or slight loss for the month. 

Critical Access.  The Joint Commission sent their recommendation to the State Wyoming 
Department of Health on December 9 and the State then sent their recommendation to CMS on 
December 12.  Due to our provisional Critical Access license being effective 10/1/2024 we are 
holding most Medicare billing until we receive the new CMS billing number.  As of December 30, we 
are holding over $21 million in Medicare billing.  Historically, Medicare monthly payments average 
$2.5 million per month which is impacting both cash collections and Days Cash on Hand. 

CLA Revenue Cycle Advisory Support.  CLA will be exiting the Revenue Cycle Support project at 
the end of December.  We have made many improvements to processes, workflows and staffing 
efforts as well as creating and/or updating written procedures for many areas of the revenue cycle.  
Even with the negative impact of the CAH delay, we can see the positive results of the project as we 
move toward the Strategic Plan Finance pillar goals.  There will be an Executive report out meeting 
with CLA and our Executive team and the final report will be in the January Finance & Audit 
committee packet. 

Price Transparency.  In January 2021, CMS implemented the Price Transparency Rule requiring 
Hospitals and other healthcare providers to share pricing information with consumers. Since then, 
CMS has added additional requirements for better access to the information, consistency of the 
format of the information and additional insurance rates.  Last year, we outsourced the file creation 
and estimator tool to a vendor as the requirements became too technical.  We have been working 
with them on the new requirement for pharmacy pricing effective January 2025.  The information file 
can be found on our website along with the required estimator tool. 
 
Budget FY2026.  The Capital budget process will begin in January when all department leaders start 
looking at equipment and other capital needs for their areas.  We will look out several years so we 
can use the information as we look at the Master Plan.  Operation budget planning will start late 
February or early March as Department directors start inputting numbers into the budget software.  
Budget hearings will take place in the Spring when we meet with all individually and go through the 
operating budget line by line.   

34/130



MHSC Board of Trustees: 1/2025 

Chief Nursing Officer (CNO) Report 

Report prepared and submitted by: Ann Marie Clevenger DNP, RN, NEA-BC 

Thank you for your support of the leadership education, aligning with the strategic plan, to provide 

education on successful team management. As the sessions near a close, the education has been 

informative, applicable, and appreciated by nursing and cardiopulmonary leadership. It also feeds into the 

development of the team of leaders that will enhance growth in the future. We appreciate the value placed 

on leadership education. 

1. This month I would like to highlight the Emergency Department. The department is led by 

Tiffany Uranker, Nurse Director and Dr. Julie Widdison from the University of Utah. The 

Emergency Department Physicians are contracted through the University of Utah. The 

Emergency Department also has two clinical coordinators, Carol Mackie and Johanna 

Sanders, a Trauma Coordinator, Mindy Aguirre, and a total of 56 staff members that include 

nurses, CNAs, Techs, Patient Safety Monitors, and Nursing Unit Secretaries. The Emergency 

Department encompasses emergencies, trauma, behavioral health, and Sexual Assault Nurse 

Examiner (SANE) 24/7 care. Through our affiliation with the University of Utah, we are able 

to provide Telemedicine Services such as Tele-Stroke, Tele-Burn, and Tele-ICU. The care 

team treats patients of all ages in the 22-bed department that includes seven fast track rooms, 

two obstetrics rooms, two behavioral health safe rooms, two trauma bays, one 

decontamination room, and seven other additional rooms for high acuity care. 

Through recruitment and retention efforts, the department has reduced travel staff by 60% in 

the last nine months. Efforts include the house wide Nursing Education Mini Orientation 

(NEMO) Program and Preceptor Program from Patty O’Lexey, Director of Education, a 

department specific New Grad Residency Program based off the Emergency Nurses 

Association recommendations, and secured a permanent nurse director, Tiffany Uranker, who 

is a well-respected leader within the department and hospital. 

The volume of patients in the Emergency Department has increased over the last several 

years ranging from approximately 11,000 in 2022, to 17,000 in 2024. With the noted 

increase, we have increased our staffing to accommodate patient care and safety. 

With the growth and development of permanent leadership in the Emergency Department, we 

are looking forward to continued improvements to meet the needs of our community. 

2. Patty O’Lexey, Director of Education, aligning with the strategic plan, has worked with Holly 

Blau, Patient Educator, to provide the community the Diabetic Education Program, 

previously led by nurses at community nursing, to meet that population's and our 

community's needs.  

3. House Supervisors are now available 24/7 to help coordinate the flow and care of patients 

throughout the facility.  

4. The College Drive Clinic and Misty Cozad, Practice Manager, continue to have an increased 

census in the Family Medicine Clinic and the Outpatient Clinic, while expanding our 

Occupational Medicine Contracts and providing services for Wamsutter twice a week. The 

clinics consist of 12 providers, eight nurses, ten medical assistants, two scribes, and seven 

patient access specialists. Occupational Medicine services over 30 companies and staffs Jim 

Bridger Power Plant two days per week. For expansion, we are currently looking into 

providing services in Farson to improve access to healthcare in their community. 

Ann 

35/130



 

 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

December 17, 2024 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on December 17, 2024, 

at 2:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Craig Rood, Trustee, Chairman 

   Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee 

   Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Director of Facilities 

Mr. Steven Skorcz, Facilities Supervisor 

Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

Mr. Taylor Jones, County Commissioner 

   

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order once a quorum was established 

 

Ms. Love shared a mission moment. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda. Ms. Love made a motion to approve the 

agenda. Mr. Johnston seconded; the motion passed.  

 

The meeting minutes of the November 19, 2024, meeting were tabled for approval.  

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston reviewed the November metrics report.  He said the number of work orders completed 

was down this month.  There was an increase in work orders due to The Joint Commission being 

onsite and preparing for the survey.  Hospital staff was asked to “look up”, noticing stained ceiling 

tiles, penetration points and gaps in tiles.  Mr. Kelsey said averaging 30 work orders a day is 

impressive. 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Oncology Suite renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley said Mr. Johnston and himself have sent several emails to the General Contract, A 

Pleasant Construction (APC), regarding the delay in this project.  APC did respond with process 

completed to date, manpower reports but has failed to supply a schedule for the completion of 

the project.  There has been a supervisor onsite, but the work is still going at a snail’s pace.  Mr. 

Wheatley said the next step is to look at the mechanism of the contract and put together a notice 

for schedule and potential damages, requiring a formal response.  Mr. Kelsey asked why this 

hadn’t been done prior.  Mr. Wheatley said there was a lot of discussion about the legitimate 

delays due to waiting for State and Department of Pharmacy approvals, test and balance issues, 

which have all been documented.  Those known issues will be separated out when calculating 

liquidated damages.  He said he is unsure why they are reluctant to provide a schedule of Phase 

II progress.  It was agreed Plan One will formulate an official notice of contract and liquidated 

damages.  Mr. Kelsey asked for a copy of the letter be shared with the Board committee 

36/130



 

 

Minutes of the December 17, 2024, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

members and he expects action.  He said APC has been less than professional and sees this as an 

act of defiance from the contractor  

  

Medical Imaging Core and X-ray 

 

Mr. Wheatley reported all approvals have been received. Groathouse is putting together the final 

schedule which will parallel with the Lab project.  They will be coordinating trades to be onsite 

for these two projects, plus the MOB Entrance in the spring. 

 

Laboratory Expansion project - SLIB 

 

Mr. Wheatley said they have been pouring the foundations in the ground for the last week.  We 

will start going vertical soon.  There has been a lot of administrative work being done in the 

background including changes to add an IT closet on the second floor which will be an added cost.  

Mr. Johnston added they will finish pouring this week and then most of the crew would be out for 

the holidays.  We will start seeing steel going up in January.  Ms. Love said she has requested the 

third reimbursement from SLIB for pay applications paid to Groathouse, for about $800k. 

 

MOB Entrance – SLIB 

 

Mr. Wheatley said Groathouse is working on the coordinated schedule with the other two projects.  

They expect to start this project in April or May since most of the work will be outside. 

 

Master Plan 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the Board workshop is scheduled for January 28, 2025.  Ms. Love said the meeting 

will via Zoom where PACT Studios will present the Master Plan.  We will then do a presentation 

on our update prioritized capital list and how those projects fit into the Master Plan options. Mr. 

Kelsey asked if the information from PACT and our prioritized capital list can be sent out prior to 

the meeting.  

 

Tabled Projects 

 

Foundation Area Renovation – Mr. Johnston said this project is still tabled until we know what the 

future plans are for the area.  This will also give us time to get the foundation and legal staff moved 

into their new space on the second floor of the new laboratory renovation.  Ms. Love said the 

Master Plan shows several options for the Foundation area.  Mr. Kelsey asked about plumbing 

issues in that area.  Ms. Love said the grant we received for this project was specifically for 

addressing the plumbing and sewar issues. 

 

 

New Business 

 

No new business was brought forward. 

 

 

 

 

37/130



 

 

Minutes of the December 17, 2024, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

Other 

 

Mr. Rood apologized for joining late and thanked Mr. Kelsey for running the meeting.  The next 

meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 21, 2025; 2:30pm. 

 

Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 3:00 pm. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

38/130



Quality Chair Report 

December, 2024 

 

 Reviewed Patient Pillar in Strategic plan. Stoplight report showed 1) only OB and ICU met 

end of year goals for “staff showed compassion,” a HCAHPS question and 2) care 

transition and cleanliness and quietness of hospital did not meet end of year goals. 

 Excellent report by Megan Guess, nurse director of Obstetrics and Women’s Health, 

explaining why high altitude is the primary cause of fallouts regarding neonatal quality 

measure and that our numbers are similar to the Laramie and Cheyenne hospitals, who 

are also at high altitude. Also mentioned the department is investigating what can be 

done to help nearby communities that have dropped their maternity care. 

 Sepsis bundle control chart was recalculated. Opportunities for improvement persist. 

 With recent inclusion of non-board member to Quality Committee, members of the 

Committee were discussed. No action taken. 

39/130



 
 

Executive Update – MHSC Quality Committee of the Board 
PROVIDED BY Stephanie Mlinar, Kari Quickenden, Ann Clevenger, Tami Love, Irene Richardson, Cindy Nelson 

REPORTING DATE December 2024 Quality Committee Monthly Meeting  

General Highlights 

• Reviewed CAH Accreditation and next steps to get Medicare billing number 
 

Patient Experience Pillar 

FY 2025 Priorities and Goals: 

• Care Transition/Care Coordination (HCAHPS)*:   57.4 percentage points by end of CY 2024, stretch goal 58%  
(re-evaluate goals in Jan ’25)   Baseline data: CY 2023 - 54.41% 
 

• Discharge information (HCAHPS)*:   89.25 percentage points by end of CY 2024, stretch goal 90%   
     (re-evaluate goals in Jan ’25)           Baseline data:  CY 2023 – 86.25% 

Additional Strategic Objectives: 
 

• Degree to which all staff showed compassion (HCAHPS)* 
o Baseline data CY 2023 

OB Baseline data 81.40% percentage points                 MS/ICU Baseline data 70.59% percentage points  
Surgery Baseline Data 91.03% percentage points                MOB Clinics Baseline Data 80.18% percentage pt.  
College Drive Clinics Baseline Data 82.36% percentage points         ED Baseline Data 70.19% percentage points 

Radiation & Medical Oncology are not surveyed through Press Ganey 
 

• Hospital Environment (HCAHPS)* 
o Cleanliness sub measurement:  Baseline MHSC data (CY 2023): 74.54% 
o Quietness sub measurement:    Baseline MHSC data (CY 2023):  64.02% 

 
Strategic Initiatives: 

• Formal leader training program  

• Dedication of one Senior Leadership meeting per month for implementation and management of 3-year strategic plan 

 
Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

 
Care Transition/Care 
Coordination:  Q3 showed 
some improvement; YTD data 
remains close to baseline 
 

   

Discharge Information:  Q3 
showed some improvement; 
YTD just short of goal 
 

   

Compassion: CY YTD 2024 
shows a small improvement 
in MOB & Surgery compared 
to baseline. OB remains the 
same 

Rounding by leaders is 
typically positive, but 
survey results do not 
indicate that. 

Rounding provides real 
time feedback from 
patients and families 
including in the moment 
solutions.  

 

 
Hospital Environment – 
Cleanliness:  Adjustments in 
scheduling with dedicated 
staff for MS/ICU Day and 
evening shifts and added 
SDS/OB evening shift 

Buy-in that cleanliness 
is everyone’s 
responsibility. 
 
The ironer has been 
down, and linens have 
been unable to be 
ironed. 
 

Minimal movement in 
scores as of October.  
There are delays in 
getting completed 
surveys back based on 
survey methodology. 

PFAC rounded and provided 
feedback. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

40/130



 
 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Hospital Environment – 
Quietness: Doors that could 
be adjusted for loudness have 
been fixed.  Earplugs and eye 
masks are available for 
patient use. Quiet 
conversations at nurse’s 
stations are encouraged 

Some doors cannot be 
adjusted for loudness 
based on life safety 
code and opening and 
closing requirements 

 Continue to monitor through Leader 
rounding on patients. 

Formal leader training:   
The second of three sessions 
completed.  One virtual 
session remains 

None identified Positively received by 
leadership team 

 

Dedication of one Senior 
Leader meeting per month for 
Strategic Plan 

None identified 
 

  

 

Quality & Safety Pillar 

FY 2025 Priorities and Strategic Objectives: 

• C. Diff:  No more than one reportable case from 4/1/2024 to 3/31/2025 (re-evaluate goals in April ’25) 

o Baseline data:  January 2024 – May 2024: 4 cases 

• SEP-1 Bundle Compliance:  70% compliance by 6/30/2025, stretch goal 75% (re-evaluate in Jan ’25) 

o Baseline data:  MHSC current data: Calendar year January-May 2024: 72.58% 

• OP23 -Stroke measure:  70% compliance by end of CY 2024, stretch goal 80% (re-evaluate in Jan ’25) 

o Baseline data:  MHSC rate (July 2024 Hospital Compare Report): 67% 

Initiatives: 

• Create process improvement position that will require Lean training and be responsible for leading improvement efforts 

• Create patient and staff education 

• 100% of clinical staff will complete TeamSTEPPS training by the end of three years 

• In-house legal counsel will provide a “risk management minute” quarterly each year and provide a recording for all staff 

• Develop method that will allow Synergi to categorize reports and create ability to track and trend data 

• Utilize Health Equity Plan to promote the highest quality outcomes and safest care for all people 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

C. Diff: 
BioFire testing is available 
with reflex testing.   
Meeting goal 

None identified Interdisciplinary review 
resulted in improved 
process. 

Continued monitoring. 

Sep-1 Bundle Compliance: 
Meeting goal 

  Continue weekly OFIs with timely 
feedback to team members. 

OP 23 – Stroke Measure: 
Meeting and exceeding goal 

  Re-evaluate target and stretch goals 
in December. 

Process Improvement 
position:  Budget reviewed for 
this FTE 

Budget for FY 25 does 
not have this FTE in 
place 

Quality Department 
Director and team 
continue process 
improvement work 

Will budget for FTE for FY 2026. 
Will develop job description and 
competencies. 

Create Staff and Patient 
Education:  Staff education – 
Prosper training held for 
evidence-based research 
regarding suicide prevention 
offered by community agency 
 
Patient education – educator 
hired, meeting goal 
 
 

None identified  Staff:  Reviewing and updating 
annual education courses 
 
Patient: 
Reviewing health literacy tools. 
Shadowing at U of U with unit 
Educator. Evaluating educational 
tools for patients to include in FY 
2026. 

41/130



 
 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Initiative regarding 
TeamSTEPPS. Attendance 
Tracking is in place and the 
activities are open to clinical 
and non-clinical staff.   
Current clinical staff 75% 
completion 

None identified Improve inter-and 
intradepartmental 
communication 

Three sessions for each of the three 
levels are available for staff to sign 
up each month. 
Monthly report sent to leadership 
with updates on compliance. 

Risk management minutes 
are being presented at 
medical staff meetings. 

None identified Provide education for 
staff, including employed 
medical staff 

Plan to upload risk management 
minutes to process improvement 
case in Synergi 

Synergi report categorization 
with further development for 
HIPAA, grievance/complaint, 
and process improvements 

None identified Further case 
categorization increases 
tracking and trending 
capabilities 

 

Health Equity: AHA HETA 
assessment completed. 
Tailored MHSC’s HE plans and 
charter to match resources 
and strategic goals. 

None identified   

 

Community, Services and Growth Pillar 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve and establish outreach to community and outlying areas  

(Baseline data unavailable, goals are being set by each team) 

o Community education 

o Diabetes Education 

o Care for the caregiver 

o Mental health 

• Improve from a Google 2-star Rating to a Google 3-star rating by the end of three years 
 

Initiatives: 

• Utilize master plan to identify areas where we can provide outreach to outlying areas 

• Develop a strategic communication/marketing plan 

• Increase number of community presentations 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Community Education goal is 
to add an additional 6 (six) 
presentations annually.   

• Quarterly Lunch & Learn at 
Young at Heart 

• Annual Rock Springs 
Chamber Luncheon 

• Annual Green River 
Chamber Luncheon 

• Annual Health Academy 
Presentation 

• Lunch & Learn for Western 
Wyoming Beverage 
 

Radiation Oncology is working 
with in-house translators to 
provide Spanish documents in 
the education binder for new 
patients. 

Scheduling can 
sometimes be difficult. 
Some departments are 
not as comfortable 
with public speaking. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Documents from 
outside entities are 
not in Spanish 
 

None identified at this 
time 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
None identified at this 
time 

Working with School District #1 to 
set up Lunch & Learns. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42/130



 
 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Diabetes Education: Diabetic 
Self-Management Education 
(DSME) site change from 
Public Health to MHSC. There 
were five referrals in the first 
week upon the transition 
from Public Health to MHSC. 

None identified at this 
time 

RN patient educator 
performs the nurse visit, 
and the Director of 
Education is the DSME 
Quality Coordinator. 
Medical Nutrition 
Therapy (MNT) continues 
through MHSC 
Dieticians. Potential 
impact to increase 
appointments as the RN 
patient educator meets 
with patients while 
hospitalized.  

MHSC Education Director and Pt 
Educator continues to improve 
processes in referrals, 
documentation, and the billing 
process. Next steps include 
awareness of the program with 
providers at MHSC and in our 
community. 

Care for the Caregiver: 
Care for the Caregiver team 
members will 
attend/participate/present at 
2 public events to meet the 
community members we 
serve, network with other 
service providers, and build 
relationships in our 
community in 2024.  Goal 
exceeded for CY 2024 with 3 
events attended. 
 

None identified None identified 2025: Care for the Caregiver team 
members will attend/ participate/ 
present at 4 public events  
MHSC will have an employee train 
and be the SWC 211 Ambassador. 
Caregivers need to know the 
services and providers available to 
them in our county and state.  
The employees of MHSC are the 
largest group of caregivers in our 
county and planning is in place for 
providing support. 
 

Mental Health: starting 
January 8, 2025, QLER will be 
providing 8 hours of service a 
week to our patients, 
increasing access to MH 
services offered in our county. 

New clinic leadership 
needs to meet with 
appropriate team 
members to develop 
plan for CY 2025 

None identified Meetings with interdisciplinary 
teams and leadership have been 
held and continue as a plan is 
developed for short term and long 
term ideas. 

Improve Google Star Rating 
Meeting and exceeding the 
goal 

None identified   

Utilize Master Plan:  no 
update at this time, planning 
in progress 
 

   

Marketing plan is focusing on 
nutrition and sharing our 
successes, on target to meet 
goal 

None identified   

Chronic Care Management is 
working toward increasing 
Medicare annual wellness 
visits. Goal is exceeded as of 
12/4/2024. 

None identified   

 

Employee Experience Pillar 

Strategic Objectives:  

• Reduce staff turnover by 10% per year, using the current turnover rate 

o Baseline/target:  Target Goal of 9.9% (a 10% reduction) in the staff turnover rate from June 2024 to the end 

of the calendar year 2024, using the current turnover rate as of June 2024 (Using a baseline of 11%, 11 x 

.10= 1.1; 11 - 1.1= 9.9)   

• Improve our employee engagement scores by 3% per year 

 

43/130



 
 

 

Initiatives: 

• Hire a consultant to evaluate and review salaries at a minimum of every three years 

• Comprehensive program for directors to develop relationships, etc. 

• Develop plan for success sharing bonus for employees if goals are reached 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Reduce Staff turnover by 10% 
per year, using current 
turnover rate (Amber). 
Meetings have occurred and 
include discussion on the 
travel staff and recruit and 
retention 
measurements/initiatives in 
financial stewardship 

None identified  The plan continues to be 
documented in the tracking system. 
Additional goal to remain under 
national staff turnover rate (YTD 
22.7%) 
HR and Nursing have action plans in 
place to reduce turnover. 

Employee Engagement Survey 
scheduled for this fall 

The goal lists that it 
will improve by 3% per 
year. The last survey 
was 2022. 

A new survey vendor is 
being used this year to 
combine the timing with 
the Culture of Safety 
Survey. Calculating a 
percentage increase may 
prove difficult because of 
two different companies. 

October 7, 2024, began the survey 
window and will run for 3 weeks 
 
Historically, the Culture of Safety 
Survey is done every 2 years. We 
will be able to look at engagement 
scores in 2026 if we keep the 
current schedule and vendor. 

Salaries were reviewed with 
adjustments made at the 
beginning of FY 2025 

   

Comprehensive program for 
Directors (also listed under 
patient experience pillar) 

  In progress 

Success sharing bonus 
implemented at the end of 
June 2024 

   

 

Financial Stewardship Pillar 

Strategic Objectives: 

• Improve revenue cycle using CliftonLarsenAllen recommendations 
o Improve Days of Cash on Hand by 10% each year for three years  FY25 = 119, FY26 = 131, FY27 = 144 
o Reduce and maintain Days in A/R to 45 days by the end of 2024  CY 24 Jan-Jul Average 63 days 
o Maintain level of claims denials at state and national benchmarks (target goal <15% by end of FY 2025) 

CY 24 Apr-June 24.7% 
o Reduce and maintain Days Not Final Billed (DNFB) at five days by the end of 2024  

CY 24 Jan-Aug Average 10.1 days 
 

• Build the MHSC County Maintenance Fund to $2,000,000 by the end of three years 
7/1/2024 $500,000 rolled over 

• Build and maintain the building fund to the amount of depreciation expense by the end of three years 
6/30/2024 $7,000,000 

• Decrease the number of Nursing and Respiratory Therapy travel staff by 30%, per year for three years 
Goal for CY 2024 is a combined RN/RT travel staff of 11.9 using a baseline CY 2023 of 17 total RN/RT travel staff 
Additional goal contract staff expenditure total less in total for CY 2024 compared to CY2023 

 
Initiatives: 

• Work with the County Commissioners to set annual budget to achieve $2,000,000 goal over three-year strategic plan 

and still allow for adequate funds in annual budget for routine maintenance 

44/130



 
 

• Supplement the building fund from monthly, quarterly, or annual contributions from cash flow from operations to 

achieve the total amount of depreciation expense by the end of three-year strategic plan 

• Nursing leadership will work with Human Resources to recruit and retain permanent staff and reduce travel staff by 

30% per year 

Accomplishments Issues Impact Action Plan 

Improve days of cash on hand Conversion to Critical 
Access – need new 
Medicare billing # 

Altering current amount 
of days of cash on hand 

 

Reduce and maintain Days in 
A/R 

Conversion to Critical 
Access – need new 
Medicare billing # 

Altering current amount 
of days in AR 

 

Maintain level of claims 
denials 

None identified   

Reduce and maintain Days 
Not Final Billed:  DNFB split 
into HIM and PFS cases 

Conversion to Critical 
Access – need new 
Medicare billing # 

Not as far along as 
others 

Continue to get team together to 
work on process 

Build the MHSC County 
Maintenance Fund:   County 
Fund process still being 
discussed 

   

Build and maintain the 
building fund 

Conversion to Critical 

Access billing held 

since Oct. 1 

  

Decrease the number of 
Nursing and Respiratory 
Therapy travel staff: 
RT staff have decreased. RN 
travel staff at baseline  

RN travel staff being 
hired for MedSurg to 
increase inpatient 
census capability over 
the busier winter 
months 

 CNO and HR Director actively 
working on plan. 
A meeting was held with 
interdisciplinary teams discussing 
the relationship between 
recruitment and retention and 
travel staff. Discussed action items. 

Alignment of individual 
departmental performance 
improvement projects (PIPS) 
has identified two additional 
areas for financial 
stewardship. 

None identified   Surgical Services – working on endo 
room turnover times, nearing goal 
Patient Navigation – working on a 
self-pay project, meeting goal 

 

Regulatory Readiness 

• The Joint Commission was on-site for the Critical Access Survey in November 

• The final accreditation letter was issued on December 6, 2024, and the State of Wyoming has 

received the required documentation and sent their recommendation to CMS. 

45/130



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft 
Monday – December 16, 2024 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Present by Zoom: Kandi Pendleton, Nena James 
Voting Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson, Suzan Campbell 
Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Tami Love, Ann Marie Clevenger, Kari Quickenden, 
Amy Lucy, Shawn Bazzanella, Ruthann Wolfe, Eddie Boggs, Cindy Nelson 
 
 
Kandi called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone. She said she appreciated having the salary 
and wage information included in the packet. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The motion to approve the October special meeting minutes was made by Nena, second by Suzan. 
Motion carried.    
 
ROUTINE REPORTS 
 

Turnover 
 

Amber reported turnover through the end of November at 18% with the national average at 21-22%.  
 
Open Positions  
 
Amy reported on open positions. Amber said we conduct exit surveys and/or send questionnaires.  
 
Contract Staffing 
 
Amy reviewed the contract staffing information. We review all open positions at PCT each week. 
Ultrasound is hard to fill throughout the country.  
 
Employee Injury & Illness Reporting  
 
Amber reviewed the employee injury and illness information. There was discussion of education for 
improvement.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Employee Policies – Dress Code Policy 
 
Amber and Suzan reviewed the draft policy. They said they took some information from the University 
of Utah policy. They included wording around acceptable and unacceptable. The Committee wants to 
review and revisit.  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Employee Health Policy 
 
Kari said there were minor changes made to the policy. Ann said the information has been reviewed by 
the nursing standards group, MEC, and Infection Prevention with no concerns. She said it is coming to 

46/130



 

Minutes of the December 16, 2024 Human Resources Committee 
Page 2 

the HR Committee because it is a Plan. With approval, we can move it to the full Board in January for 
review. The motion to approve the Employee Health Policy as presented was made by Kandi; second by 
Nena. Motion carried.  
 
Employee Policies – Access to personnel file 
 
Suzan and Amber said they are reviewing the policies in need of review and updates. Suzan will make 
changes and send out for review. Kandi said we can meet more frequently if there is policy update work 
going on and approvals are needed.  
 
NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting is scheduled Monday, January 20 at 3:00 p.m. The Committee discussed Teams vs. 
Zoom. Everyone is willing to use whatever method is best. Amber will set up as Teams and conduct a 
test with Kandi and Nena at least a week before the next meeting.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:54 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47/130



Separator Page

Capital Expenditure FY25 27 PACS VNA Migration Unity 

Report

48/130



49/130



50/130



51/130



52/130



53/130



54/130



55/130



56/130



57/130



58/130



Separator Page

Capital Expenditure FY25 28 PACS Reports Voice 

Recognition

59/130



60/130



61/130



62/130



63/130



64/130



65/130



66/130



67/130



68/130



69/130



Department 
SWOT Analysis Meeting 

Information Service 

December 26, 2024

Introduction- 

We are working on a new strategic plan and would like the input of the Leadership Team.  Our 

goal is to work together to discuss our strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats from 

the Leadership and staff perspective.  As we discuss the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, 

and threats, please keep in mind that the strengths and weaknesses are internal, and the 

opportunities and threats are external.   

70/130



Department 
SWOT Analysis Meeting 

STRENGTHS: what our hospital excels at, capabilities and resources that provide a 

competitive advantage, new or innovative services or specialties, factors that improve 

our hospital’s community standing or meeting community needs.   

 

1. Information Service Team, I consider this team to be our greatest asset, where their customer 

service, professionalism, teamwork, and the basic can-do attitude is exceptional.  I consider it an 

honor and privilege to serve this team as their service leader. 

2. MHSC executive leadership, Irene and Tami, have supported our vision where IT is an investment 

not an overhead cost department.  None of our success would have been possible without their 

support and leadership.  

 

WEAKNESSES: factors that place the hospital at a disadvantage, or prevent us from 

performing at the optimum level, factors that may impede our ability to do our jobs.  

 

1. Staffing resources, we are beginning to fall behind, as our services improve so does the demand 

for these services, as we service 1200 computer users accounts and approximately 2000 

systems, where in 2024 we resolved 10,100 service tickets.  Also, with the increased cyberattacks 

within healthcare we are finding ourselves doing more to ensure we are keeping MHSC’s 

computer environment secure, with audits, patching, and vulnerability studies.    

 

OPPORTUNITIES: favorable external factors that could give us a competitive edge or 

could allow us to improve current workflow and processes.  

 

1. Artificial intelligence (AI) within healthcare, AI provides increased benefits within medical 

diagnosis, medical documentation, and medical payment processes, as well as within 

cybersecurity.  Where all this is done without an increase in staffing.  Many have wondered if AI 

will replace existing staffing directly, but with the large timeframe of implementation and 

71/130



learning there will be no direct impact on staff reduction, but the reduction will be in the form of 

attrition. 

THREATS: factors that could negatively impact the hospital, stand in the way of our 

success, or potentially harm our hospital.   

 

1. MHSC greatest threat within IT is a successful cyberattack that would directly impact services to 

our community.  We are mitigating these threats, by 1) monthly real-time training with phishing 

campaigns, and lessons learned emails.  2) real-time detections system(s) MS Defender end 

point protection system, Darktrace network detection and response system, SonicWall perimeter 

Firewall system, Cisco Umbrella Internet firewall, MFA multifactor authentication.  3) incident 

preparation, where we are working on a business continuity, disaster recovery plan BCDR, and 

department downtime procedures. 

 

2024 Successful Projects: 

1. Microsoft Intune implementation, Ongoing – This technology solution will move MHSC domain 

into the cloud, allowing IT more control over end point devices, simplifying many of our internal 

processes. removing many of the CISA 2023 cybersecurity findings. 

2. CrowdStrike remediation, Complete – After the CrowdStrike incident disabling most of MHSC 

computer systems we have moved away from this solution onto MS Defender end point 

protection system. 

3. Windows 11 rollout, Ongoing – We are actively testing and rolling out Windows 11 within MHSC 

environments. 

4. Bridger clinic direct Internet connectivity, Complete – We were able to provide the Bridger clinic 

with direct Internet connectivity enabling better clinical services for this clinic. 

5. Data Center power redundancy, Complete – With the implementation of a secondary 

uninterrupted power supply (UPS) within the data center, and the distribution of power between 

these two separate UPS, the hospital was able to replace it main UPS without interruption of 

computer services. 

6. Great Plains (GP) on remote desktop services (RDS), Complete – this technical solution provides 

us more system stability, ease of service, while improving upon system security. 

7. SecureLink implementation, Complete – This secure third-party access system secures the access 

into MHSC systems, ensure the employment and records the access of third party support 

vendors. 

 

72/130



73/130



74/130



75/130



76/130



77/130



78/130



79/130



80/130



81/130



82/130



83/130



84/130



85/130



86/130



87/130



88/130



89/130



90/130



91/130



92/130



93/130



94/130



95/130



96/130



97/130



98/130



99/130



100/130



101/130



102/130



103/130



104/130



105/130



106/130



107/130



108/130



109/130



110/130



111/130



112/130



113/130



114/130



115/130



116/130



117/130



118/130



119/130



120/130



121/130



122/130



123/130



124/130



125/130



126/130



127/130



 

MHSC Board of Trustees Report 
January 2024 

Business 
• The Foundation Coordinator position has been filled; please welcome Cory Darlington.  

• Foundation has accepted a Senior student shadow from the RS high school and will be educating 

him/her on grants, fundraising, private donations, public relations, community involvement, the 

importance of healthcare and of course, how wonderful our hospital is! 

Grants 
• $20,000 Received from The Wyoming Community Foundation donor fund for the Waldner House. 

• $4,800 Grant Submitted in support for Cancer Survivors during “survivorship night.” 

• $33,580.04 Inquiry for Emergency Management HERT for NIOSH CBRN certified respirator 

systems. 

• $25,000 Inquiry for Emergency Management Tent system 

• $2,000 Inquiry for IT Department 

• Inquiry for Trauma Training- Nursing Department- Funding application in progress.  

• Inquiry for Rapid Blood Transfusion equipment for OB 

• Inquiry for new MOB patient chairs- Will be taken to the Foundation Board in January  

Brick Donations 
• $50,000 Private donation confirmed, and half was received  

 

Upcoming Events 
The11th annual Red Tie Gala will be February 1, 2025. The Foundation has a committee in place and the 
planning preparations have started. A specialty drink and casino tables will be introdueced to the Gala this year, 
we can't wait to share them with you! 

Scan here for Gala sponsorships/ tickets! 
  

 

128/130



Foundation Report Continued… 
 

 

Other 
• Dr. Cournoyer passed away on September 1st and his family requested that donations go to the 

Foundation. We will be working with his family to have a brick or bench placement ceremony in his 

honor. (an invitation will be sent out via e-mail) 

• Foundation ED was accepted into the BOOST Leadership Academy and will be actively 

participating with community leaders across the County, including Irene! 

• Meetings to meet and thank current long-term donors and introduce myself are still in process. 

• Foundation now has its own Facebook page- Please go “Like” it! 
 
 
 

 
Report Submitted By: Kayla Mannikko 

 

129/130



130/130


	Agenda - January 8, 2025 Mtg
	December 4, 2024 Regular Meeting
	December 23, 2024 Special Meeting
	Orientation Memo Health Equity Plan and Charter January 8 2025 Second Read
	Health Equity Plan-Draft-Changes 11.13.2024
	Orientation Memo 2025_January_BOARD NOTE FOR EMPLOYEE HEALTHPLAN POLICY
	Employee Health Plan -inc- forms -800263- 802926- 802769- 802973-Changes Noted
	Chief Clinical Officer
	Chief Experience Officer
	Chief Financial Officer
	Chief Nursing Officer
	Building &amp; Grounds Committee
	Quality Chair Report December 2024 for January 2025 meeting packet Barbara Sowada
	Executive Summary December 2024
	Human Resources Committee
	Capital Expenditure FY25 27 PACS VNA Migration Unity Report
	Capital Expenditure FY25 28 PACS Reports Voice Recognition
	IS Report for January 2025
	IT SWOT analysis Report
	F&A part 1 for January 2025
	F&A 2 for January 2025
	F&A 3 for January 2025
	Foundation Board
	GoRura

